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            ITEM #    39__ 
 DATE: _10-11-16 

 
 COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
SUBJECT:   URBAN REVITALIZATION TAX ABATEMENT FINAL APPROVAL 

REQUEST FOR 2311 CHAMBERLAIN (THE EDGE)  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In accordance with Chapter 404 of the Code of Iowa, the City Council has established 
Urban Revitalization Areas (URAs) with Plans specifying standards for types and 
elements of physical improvements that provide public benefits. When property within 
one of these URAs is developed, redeveloped, rehabilitated, or remodeled in 
accordance with the URA standards, the property owner is eligible for abatement of 
property taxes on the incremental increase in property value after the improvements are 
completed. This abatement can extend for three, five or ten years, based on the 
individual Urban Revitalization Plan approved by Council.  
 
Property owners within an approved URA may apply for tax exemption for a complete 
project or preapproval for project that is planned to be built. The City must determine if 
the completed improvements meet the standards in the Urban Revitalization Plan 
in order to grant tax abatement and forward the determination to the Assessor.  If 
the project complies with the criteria, it must be approved for tax abatement. In this 
instance, the project was begun under the prior set of criteria for Campustown that were 
amended in January 2016. The project must comply with the current criteria that are 
included within Attachment B. The most significant changes for this project was the 
inclusion of design guidelines for building design and to have a sign program approved 
by the Planning Director prior to tax abatement approval. The other criteria for public 
safety measures, mixed use and parking, clay brick, all remained the same from the 
time the project was initiated. 
 
The Gilbane Development Company is seeking final approval of their mixed-use 
project at 2311 Chamberlain earlier than our customary annual approval cycle of 
February. Staff does not typically bring individual requests to the Council before 
February. The developer desires final approval in advance of February 2017 to 
assist in setting up the long term financing of the project this fall.   
 
Gilbane estimates cost of the project at $12,526,000. The estimate is based on 
construction cost or sales price provided by the property owner and may not be the 
same as the added property value upon which the abatement is based. The applicant 
indicates they will choose the 10-year abatement option.  
 
The project includes 5,389 square feet of commercial space along the ground floor of 
the building along Chamberlain Street.  Above the first floor is 86 apartments totaling 
289 beds.  The project includes below ground structured parking as well as ground level 
parking. More than 80% of required parking is within a structure. The site is also subject 
to previously approved shared and remote parking agreements with 111 Lynn and 2335 
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Chamberlain Street.  Residential access occurs from a direct path to Lincoln Way and 
also to Chamberlain.   
 
Planning and Police Department staff met with Gilbane representatives and walked the 
site in August 2016 to determine compliance with all of the criteria for eligibility. Police is 
satisfied with the lighting, windows, and visibility and residential access points as 
meeting the criteria. The site has been cleared for compliance with all of the other public 
safety measures as well. Planning staff also believes it is in conformance with the 
design requirements of the URA.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1. The City Council can approve the request for approval of tax exemption for the 

mixed use project located at 2311 Chamberlain Street, if it finds that it 
substantially conforms to the Campustown Urban Revitalization Area Criteria 
adopted in January 2016 by the City Council. 

 
2. The City Council can deny the request for approval of tax exemption for the mixed 

use project located at 2311 Lincoln Way, if it finds that the improvements are not 
in conformance with the Campustown Urban Revitalization Area Criteria. If denied, 
the applicant may make modifications to the project to meet the criteria and submit 
a new request for tax abatement. 

 
MANAGER'S RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Although final approvals do not normally occur during the regular calendar year, staff 
has attempted to meet a customer interest by bringing this request forward prior to 
February 2017. Staff has completed an on-site inspection of the improvements 
constructed, and finds that the work completed conforms to the Campustown 
Urban Revitalization Area Criteria.   
 
Therefore, it is the recommendation of the City Manager that the City Council accept 
Alternative #1, thereby approving the request for tax exemption as conforming to the 
Campustown Urban Revitalization Criteria. Approval of the request for tax exemption 
will enable the City Assessor to process tax exemption for this property and determine 
the value of the respective exemption.   
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Attachment A   
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Attachment B 
Campustown Urban Revitalization Criteria 
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Attachment B (cont.) 
 



September 21, 2015 

Kelly Diekmann  
Planning and Housing Director  
Department of Planning and Housing 
City of Ames 
City Hall, 515 Clark Avenue,  
Ames, IA 50010 

Dear Mr. Diekmann, 

ISU Student Housing – 2311 Chamberlain Street, Ames, IA 50014 
Request for Prior Approval for Eligibility for Tax Abatement 

Our above project is located within the Campustown Revitalization District which offers a Tax 
Abatement Program incentive to encourage new development and help enhance the community in the 
university area.  

In pursuant to Section 404.4 of the Iowa Code, we submit herewith the necessary application form for 
Prior Approval for Eligibility for tax abatement on this project.  

Our approved Minor Site Plan drawings were designed and submitted to meet the development 
standards in the zoning code as well as the tax abatement program. Every effort will be made to ensure 
that the conditions in the approval letter dated April 24, 2015 and the criteria listed on tax abatement 
application form are complied. In addition, we understand that it will be subjected to the improvements 
being completed and inspected to ensure that these requirements are fulfilled. 

The construction of the student housing project is in progress and is expected to be completed in July 
2016. Over the course of construction, we will continue to work diligently with the Staff and the Police 
Department to address any concerns. 

Please note that even though the Subdivision Plat was approved early this month, the parcel has not 
been assigned a Parcel Identification from the Assessor’s Office as yet.  

We hope this written request will be considered favorably and we look forward to hearing from you 
soon.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me for any other information you may need. 

Sincerely, 

Andrew Ang 
Development Director 
Gilbane Development Company 



To Be Determined
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